



Smarter Balanced: Summative Assessment

Test Administration Manual

English Language Arts and Mathematics

2023-2024

Published November 7, 2023



Descriptions of the operation of the Test Information Distribution Engine, Test Delivery System, and related systems are property of Cambium Assessment, Inc. (CAI) and are used with the permission of CAI.



This page has been intentionally left blank.



Table of Contents

Smarter Balanced Resources and Help Desk Information	1
Section I. Overview of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and Test Security	2
I.I About the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments	2
I.II Ensuring Test Security	2
I.III Security of the Test Environment	3
I.IV Secure Handling of Printed Materials	5
Destruction of Printed Materials and Scratch Paper	5
Use of Scratch Paper on the Performance Task	5
Section II. General Test Administration Information	6
II.I Assessment Participation	7
Grades 3–8 Participation Requirements	7
Participation of Students with Disabilities	7
Participation of English Learners/Multilingual Learners	8
II.II General Rules of Online Testing	8
Basic Online Testing Parameters	8
Pause Rules	9
Test Timeout (Due to Inactivity)	10
Test Expiration	10
II.III Test Scheduling	11
Section III. Prior to Test Administration	13
III.I Establishing Appropriate Testing Conditions	13
III.II Tasks to Complete Prior to Test Administration	14
Section IV. Day of Test Administration	17
IV.I Test Session Administration	18
1. Log in to the Test Administration Interface	18
2. Create a Test Session Immediately	19
3. Start the Test Session	19
4. Inform the Students of the Test Session ID	20
5. Inform Students of the Test Session in Which They are Participating	22
6. View and Approve Students Waiting for Test Session Approval	22
7. Monitor Student Progress	26
8. End the Test Session and Log Out of the Test Administration Interface	28
IV.II Testing Over Multiple Sessions or Days	29
Section V. Following Test Administration	31



V.I Destroying Test Materials	31
V.II Reporting Testing Improprieties, Irregularities, and Breaches	31
Appendix A. Computer Adaptive Test Pause Rule Scenarios	33
Scenarios	33
Appendix B. Testing Improprieties, Irregularities, and Breaches	35
Appendix C. Test Security Violations	37
Appendix D. Test Examiner Checklist	39
Appendix E. What If My Student Becomes Disruptive or Refuses to Respond?	41
Appendix F. Scheduling a Test Session in Advance	43
How to Schedule a Test Session in Advance	43
How to Modify a Test Session that was Scheduled in Advance but has Not Started Yet	46



Smarter Balanced Resources and Help Desk Information

Connecticut Comprehensive Assessment Program Portal https://ct.portal.cambiumast.com/

This website is the home page for all Connecticut Smarter Balanced Assessment administration information.

Connecticut Comprehensive Assessment Program Help Desk

1-844-202-7583 | cthelpdesk@cambiumassessment.com

The Help Desk is open Monday–Friday 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. EST outside of the summative testing window and Monday–Friday 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. EST during the summative testing window (except holidays).

The Help Desk may be contacted for situations and questions that include any of the following:

- testing environment down or unavailable;
- user accounts not available or users are not able to administer tests;
- student information or test session incorrect or missing;
- loading student settings into the Test Information Distribution Engine (TIDE);
- appeals functionality in TIDE;
- preparing for online testing—downloading the secure browser, etc.; and
- password resets for district and school user accounts.

When contacting the Help Desk, please provide the representative with as much detail as possible about the issue(s) encountered and the system on which it occurred. Details should include the following:

- the type of device being used with the system;
- any error messages that appeared (code and description);
- operating system and browser information;
- network configuration information;
- your contact information for follow-up, including email address and phone number; and
- any relevant and authorized student and school information, including State Assigned Student Identifier (SASID), grade level, content area, and the name of the performance task (PT) or computer adaptive test (CAT).



Section I. Overview of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and Test Security

I.I About the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments

The Smarter Balanced Assessments are aligned to the Connecticut Core Standards in English language arts (ELA) and mathematics that measure student progress toward college and career readiness. The Smarter Balanced Assessments are available in both content areas to students in Grades 3–8. The mathematics assessment consists of a computer adaptive test (CAT) and a performance task (PT), and the ELA assessment consists of a CAT only. More information about the Smarter Balanced Assessments is available on the Connecticut State Department of Education website.

I.II Ensuring Test Security

The security of assessment instruments and the confidentiality of student information are vital to maintaining the validity, reliability, and fairness of the results.

All summative test items and test materials are secure and must be appropriately handled. Secure handling protects the integrity and confidentiality of assessment items, prompts, and student information. Any deviation in test administration must be reported as a test security incident to ensure that the assessment results are valid.

Violation of test security is a serious matter with far-reaching consequences. Breaches of test security include, but are not limited to, copying of test materials, failing to return test materials, coaching students, giving students answers, and/or changing students' answers. Such acts may lead to the invalidation of an entire school district's student test scores, disruption of the test system state-wide, and legal action against the individual(s) committing the breach. A breach of test security may be dealt with as a violation of the Code of Professional Responsibility for Teachers, as well as a violation of other pertinent state and federal law and regulation. The Connecticut State Department of Education will investigate all such matters and pursue appropriate follow-up action. Any person found to have intentionally breached the security of the test system may be subject to sanctions including, but not limited to, disciplinary action by a local board of education, the revocation of Connecticut teaching certification by the State Board of Education,* and civil liability pursuant to federal copyright law.

*See Section 10-145b (i) (2) (E) of the Connecticut General Statutes, which reads in part as follows: The State Board of Education <u>may</u> revoke any certificate, permit, or authorization issued pursuant to said sections if the holder is found to have intentionally disclosed specific questions or answers to students or otherwise improperly breached the security of any administration of a mastery examination, pursuant to section 10-14n.



I.III Security of the Test Environment

<u>Table 1</u> describes security requirements for the test environment during various stages of testing. The test environment refers to all aspects of the testing situation while students are testing and includes what a student can see, hear, or access (including access via technology).

Individuals who have witnessed, been informed of, or suspect the possibility of a test security incident that could potentially affect the integrity of the assessments, or the resulting data must report such incidents immediately to the District Administrator.

Refer to <u>Appendix B: Testing Improprieties</u>, <u>Irregularities</u>, <u>and Breaches</u> and <u>Appendix C: Test</u> <u>Security</u> for more information about prohibited behaviors that may give a student an unfair advantage or compromise the security of the assessments. The requirements of the test environment are included in <u>Table 1</u>.

Requirements Before Testing				
Instructional materials removed or covered	Instructional materials must be removed or covered, including but not limited to, information that might assist students in answering questions. This includes materials that may be displayed on bulletin boards, chalkboards or dry-erase boards, or on charts (e.g., wall charts that contain literary definitions, maps, mathematics formulas, etc.).			
Student seating	Students must be seated so there is enough space between them to minimize opportunities to look at each other's work, or they should be provided with table-top partitions. Students may also be tested on an individual basis as appropriate.			
Signage	If helpful, place a "TESTING—DO NOT DISTURB" sign on the door or post signs in halls and entrances rerouting hallway traffic in order to promote optimum testing conditions.			
	Requirements During Testing			
Quiet environment	Provide a quiet environment void of talking or other distractions that might interfere with a student's ability to concentrate or might compromise the testing situation.			
Student supervision of electronic devices	Actively monitor students and prohibit them from access to unauthorized electronic devices that allow access to outside information, communication among students or with other individuals outside the test environment, or photographing or copying test content. This includes any device with cellular, messaging, or wireless capabilities, but is not limited to cell phones, smart watches, iPods, cameras, and electronic translation devices.			

Table 1. Requirements of the Test Environment



Student access to allowable resources only	Students must only have access to and use of those allowable resources identified by Smarter Balanced (see section <u>III.1 Establishing Appropriate Testing Conditions</u> for examples) that are permitted for each specific test (or portion of a test). This includes access to medical devices, which may be integrated into other technology devices. Use of such devices may require additional monitoring to maintain test security.
No answer key development	No form or type of answer key may be developed for test items.
Access to assessments	Only students who are testing can view test items. Students who are not being tested or unauthorized staff or other adults must not be in the room where a test is being administered and must not have access to secure testing materials including test items. Trained Teachers and Test Administrators may have limited exposure to test items in the course of properly administering the assessments; however, Test Coordinators and test examiners may not actively review or analyze any test items.
Testing through secure browser	Administration of the Smarter Balanced Assessments is permitted only through the Student Interface via the secure browser.
No unauthorized login to Test Delivery System	Only students may log in to the Student Interface. Students may not use another student's login credentials. Only authorized adults may log in to the Test Administration Interface. An adult may not use another person's username and password.
	REQUIREMENTS DURING AND AFTER TESTING
No access to responses	REQUIREMENTS DURING AND AFTER TESTING District and school staff are not permitted to review student responses in the testing interface or students' notes on scratch paper.
No access to responses No copies of test materials	REQUIREMENTS DURING AND AFTER TESTING District and school staff are not permitted to review student responses in the testing interface or students' notes on scratch paper. Unless needed as a print-on-demand or braille accommodation, no copies of the test items, stimuli, reading passages, performance task materials, or writing prompts may be made or otherwise retained.
No access to responses No copies of test materials No access to digital, electronic, or manual devices	REQUIREMENTS DURING AND AFTER TESTINGDistrict and school staff are not permitted to review student responses in the testing interface or students' notes on scratch paper.Unless needed as a print-on-demand or braille accommodation, no copies of the test items, stimuli, reading passages, performance task materials, or writing prompts may be made or otherwise retained.No digital, electronic, or manual device may be used to record or retain test items, reading passages, or writing prompts. Similarly, these materials must not be discussed with or released to anyone via any media, including fax, email, social media websites, etc.
No access to responses No copies of test materials No access to digital, electronic, or manual devices No retaining, discussing, or releasing test materials	REQUIREMENTS DURING AND AFTER TESTINGDistrict and school staff are not permitted to review student responses in the testing interface or students' notes on scratch paper.Unless needed as a print-on-demand or braille accommodation, no copies of the test items, stimuli, reading passages, performance task materials, or writing prompts may be made or otherwise retained.No digital, electronic, or manual device may be used to record or retain test items, reading passages, or writing prompts. Similarly, these materials must not be discussed with or released to anyone via any media, including fax, email, social media websites, etc.Descriptions of test items, stimuli, printed reading passages, or writing prompts must not be retained, discussed, or released to anyone.
No access to responses No copies of test materials No access to digital, electronic, or manual devices No retaining, discussing, or releasing test materials No reviewing, discussing, or analyzing test materials	REQUIREMENTS DURING AND AFTER TESTING District and school staff are not permitted to review student responses in the testing interface or students' notes on scratch paper. Unless needed as a print-on-demand or braille accommodation, no copies of the test items, stimuli, reading passages, performance task materials, or writing prompts may be made or otherwise retained. No digital, electronic, or manual device may be used to record or retain test items, reading passages, or writing prompts. Similarly, these materials must not be discussed with or released to anyone via any media, including fax, email, social media websites, etc. Descriptions of test items, stimuli, printed reading passages, or writing prompts must not be retained, discussed, or released to anyone. District and school staff may not review, discuss, or analyze test items, stimuli, reading passages, or writing prompts at any time, including before, during, or after testing.

Table 1. Requirements of the Test Environment



All test materials must remain secure at all times	Printed materials from the print-on-demand accommodation, scratch paper, and documents with student information must be kept in a securely locked room or locked cabinet that can be opened only by staff responsible for test administration.			
	REQUIREMENTS AFTER TESTING			
No test materials used for instructional purpose	Test items, stimuli, reading passages, or writing prompts must not be used for instructional purposes.			
Destroy test materials securely	Printed test items/passages, including embossed braille printouts and scratch paper, must be collected at the end of each test session and then immediately destroyed. See section <u>I.IV Secure Handling of Printed Materials</u> for details.			

Table 1. Requirements of the Test Environment

I.IV Secure Handling of Printed Materials

Destruction of Printed Materials and Scratch Paper

Printed materials from the print-on-demand accommodation and scratch paper must be kept in a securely locked room or locked cabinet that can be opened only by staff responsible for test administration. All test materials must remain secure at all times. Printed test items and passages, including embossed braille printouts and scratch paper, must be collected at the end of each test session and then immediately destroyed. Do **NOT** keep printed test items, passages, or scratch paper for future test sessions except as noted below for PTs.

Use of Scratch Paper on the Performance Task

The mathematics PT may extend beyond one test session. In these instances, the test examiner should tell students to write their names on the scratch paper (and graph paper for Grades 6–8), collect the paper used in the first session, and securely store all scratch paper for students' use in the subsequent test session.



Alert: The retention of scratch paper is only allowed for the PT. Following the conclusion of the PT, all scratch paper and graph paper (for mathematics Grades 6–8) must be collected and immediately destroyed to maintain test security.



This page has been intentionally left blank.



Section II. General Test Administration Information

II.I Assessment Participation

Grades 3–8 Participation Requirements

School and district personnel should follow federal and state policies regarding student participation. *Connecticut General Statutes (Section 10-14n) mandate that all public school students enrolled in Grades 3–8 participate in the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments or the Connecticut Alternate Assessments for ELA and mathematics, including students who repeat Grades 3–8.*

Connecticut General Statute 10-14n:

(b) (1) For the school year commencing July 1, 2015, and each school year thereafter, each student enrolled in Grades three to eight, inclusive, and Grade eleven in any public school shall, annually, take a mastery examination in reading, writing, and mathematics during the regular school day.

A student counts as a participant if, at minimum, the student logs in to both the CAT and PT for mathematics and the CAT only for ELA. A student is considered a non-participant in ELA if the CAT is not accessed, and a non-participant in mathematics if neither test is accessed, or if only one of the two mathematics components is accessed. For example, if the student logs into the ELA test and does not answer at least one item, no score will be provided. If the student does not answer at least one item on both the Math CAT and Math PT, a score will also not be provided.

Participation of Students with Disabilities

Consistent with the Smarter Balanced testing plan, all students, including students with disabilities, English learners/multilingual learners (ELs/MLs), and ELs/MLs with disabilities, should have equal opportunity to participate in the Smarter Balanced Assessments.

The Connecticut State Department of Education <u>Assessment Guidelines</u> provides guidance for Connecticut school district personnel who must make decisions about testing student populations on the Smarter Balanced Assessments. The Smarter Balanced Assessments use a variety of innovative, digital, accessibility tools that are embedded in the Test Delivery System, as well as a variety of designated supports and accommodations.

All students enrolled in Grades 3–8 are required to participate in the Smarter Balanced Assessments, except students with the most significant cognitive disabilities who meet the criteria for participating in the <u>Connecticut Alternate Assessment System</u>.



Participation of English Learners/Multilingual Learners

Regardless of the amount of time in a United States school, ELs/MLs must be assessed in mathematics and ELA. Refer to the <u>Embedded and Non-Embedded Designated Supports for</u> <u>English Learners/Multilingual Learners</u> brochure for language access supports on the Smarter Balanced assessments.

II.II General Rules of Online Testing

This section provides a brief overview of the general test administration rules for different portions of the assessment, as well as information about test tools and accommodations. For more information, refer to the <u>Test Administrator User Guide</u> available for download from the <u>Connecticut Comprehensive Assessment Program Portal</u>.

Basic Online Testing Parameters

- The CAT in both subject areas and the PT in mathematics will be presented as separate tests. Students may not return to a test once it has been completed and submitted.
- Within each test, there may be segments. For example, the Grades 6–8 mathematics tests include some segments with an embedded calculator (including the Math PT) and some without. A student may not return to a segment once it has been completed and submitted.
- Students **must enter an answer for all test items on a page** before going to the next page. Some pages contain multiple test items. Students may need to use the vertical scroll bar to view all items on a page.
- Students may mark test items for review and use the **Questions** drop-down list to return to those items within a segment.



Pause Rules

During the CAT:

- If the CAT portion of the test is paused for less than 20 minutes, the student can return to previous test pages and change the response to any item the student has already answered within a segment.
- If the CAT portion of the test is paused for more than 20 minutes, the student is required to log back into the Student Interface. The test will return the student to the last page with unanswered items when the student logs back into the test and resumes testing. If a page has both answered and unanswered items, the student may change any answers on that page. The student may not return to previous pages and cannot change answers to items on previous pages.
- Any highlighted text will remain as long as the student logs back into the test using the same operating system.
- Any notes on the digital notepad will not be saved when a test is paused regardless of how long the test is paused.
- In the event of a technical issue (e.g., power outage or network failure), students will be logged out and the test will automatically be paused. The students will need to log in again to resume the test.
- See <u>Appendix A: Computer Adaptive Test Pause Rule Scenarios</u> to review the rules that govern pausing during the test.

During the Mathematics PT:

- There are no pause restrictions. If the mathematics PT is paused for 20 minutes or more, the student can return to the section and continue entering his or her responses.
- For the mathematics PT, any highlighted text will remain as long as the student logs back into the test using the same operating system.
- For the mathematics PT, any notes on the embedded notepad for each item will **not** be saved when a test is paused regardless of how long the assessment is paused.
- In the event of a technical issue (e.g., power outage or network failure), students will be logged out and the test will automatically be paused. Students will need to log in to the Student Interface again in order to resume the test.



Test Timeout (Due to Inactivity)

As a security measure, students and the test examiner are automatically logged out of the test after 30 minutes of inactivity. *Activity* is defined as selecting an answer or navigation option in the assessment (e.g., clicking [**Next**] or [**Back**] or using the **Questions** drop-down list to navigate to another item).

Before the system logs the student out of the assessment, a warning message will be displayed on the screen. If the student does not click [**Ok**] within 30 seconds after this message appears, he or she will be logged out and, if applicable, the pause rules take effect. Clicking [**Ok**] will restart the 30 minute inactivity timer.

Idle Timeout	
Are you still there? Click OK to continue or you will be logged out in 30 seconds. [Message Code: 10906]	
	Ok

Alert: As a security measure, the test examiner is automatically logged out after 30 minutes of user inactivity in the session, which will result in the closing of the test session. This includes inactivity by both the test examiner on the Test Administration Interface AND students within a test in the test session.

Test Expiration

Computer Adaptive Test

A student's CAT remains active until the student completes and submits the test or until it expires **45** calendar days after the student began the CAT, whichever occurs sooner. However, it is recommended that students complete the CAT within **five days** of starting each content area.

Performance Task

The mathematics PT remains active until the student completes and submits the test or will expire **20** calendar days after the student began the PT, whichever occurs sooner. However, it is recommended that students complete the mathematics PT within **three days** of starting it.



Note: If a student starts the test near the end of the testing window, the student must finish before the administration window officially closes. The assessment will end automatically on the last day of the scheduled administration window, even if the student has not finished. If the student does not finish the test before the test administration window closes, the test is expired and the items that were responded to will be sent for scoring.



II.III Test Scheduling

All students participating in the assessments will receive a CAT and a PT in mathematics and a CAT in ELA. The testing window for the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment is included in <u>Table 2</u>.

Table	2.	Testing	Window
-------	----	---------	--------

Testing Window	Date
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment (Grades 3–8)	March 25, 2024 – May 31, 2024

Scheduling Time for Testing

<u>Table 3</u> contains estimates of the time it will take most students to complete the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments. This information is for scheduling purposes only, as the assessments are not timed.

Content Area	Grades	Computer Adaptive Test (CAT) Hours : Minutes	Performance Task (PT) Hours : Minutes	Total Time Hours : Minutes
English Language	3–5	1:30	_	1:30
Arts	6–8	1:30	_	1:30
Mathamatica	3–5	1:30	1:00	2:30
Mathematics	6–8	2:00	1:00	3:00
Both English	3–5	3:00	1:00	4:00
Mathematics	6–8	3:30	1:00	4:30

Table 3. Estimated Testing Times for Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments

These estimates do not account for any time needed to start computers, load secure browsers, and log in students, and they do not account for breaks. Test Examiners should work with Test Coordinators to determine precise testing schedules.

Recommended Order of Administration

In mathematics, the CAT and PT may be administered in any order. It is recommended that the CAT be administered before the PT and on a separate day from the PT.



This page has been intentionally left blank.



Section III. Prior to Test Administration

Prior to administering a test, test examiners should:

- read this manual;
- attend any district/school test administration training;
- check to confirm the latest secure browser is available on each device to be used for testing;
- view student information prior to testing to ensure that the correct student receives the proper test with the appropriate supports (a test examiner should report any potential data errors to a Test Coordinator, as appropriate);
- report all potential test security incidents to the District Administrator in a manner consistent with state and district policies; and
- adhere to state test-security policy (see section <u>I.II Ensuring Test Security</u>).

III.I Establishing Appropriate Testing Conditions

The test administration should be conducted in a secure environment (see section <u>I.III Security</u> of the Test Environment). Test Coordinators and test examiners will need to work together to determine the most appropriate testing option(s) and testing environment based on the number of computers available, the number of students in each testing grade, and the estimated time needed to complete each test.

Establish procedures to maintain a quiet testing environment throughout the test session, recognizing that some students will finish more quickly than others. If students are allowed to leave the testing room when they finish, explain the procedures for leaving without disrupting others and where they are expected to report once they leave. If students are expected to remain in the testing room until the end of the session, instruct them on what activities they may engage in after they finish the test.

During test administration, students may have access to these additional required resources in Table 4.



Table 4. Additional Required Resources

Content Area	Description
English language arts	 Headphones are required for the ELA Listening portion of the ELA assessment and for students requiring text-to-speech. Scratch paper should be provided for note taking.
Mathematics	 Headphones are required for students requiring text-to-speech and for students requiring Audio Glossaries.
	 An embedded calculator will be available for some mathematics items (including the Math PT) in Grades 6, 7, and 8.
	 Scratch paper is required for all grades.
	 Graph paper is also required for Grades 6, 7, and 8.

III.II Tasks to Complete Prior to Test Administration

<u>Table 5</u> outlines all tasks that must be completed prior to the administration of any Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment.

Table 5. Tasks to Complete Prior to Test Administration

Action		
Verify that students are provided the opportunity to practice on the Training Test and Practice Test prior to testing.		
• It is highly recommended that ALL students be provided the opportunity to practice on the Training Test and Practice Test prior to testing. This allows students the opportunity to become familiar with all of the item types, the universal tools, buttons, and any allowable designated supports and/or accommodations.		
Verify that students are familiar with all item types that may appear on the online tests and know how to use the embedded universal tools, designated supports, and accommodations if applicable.		
• It is highly recommended that ALL students be provided with the opportunity to view the <u>Item Type Tutorials</u> available on the Connecticut Comprehensive Assessment Program Portal.		
Ensure the secure browser is available on each device to be used for testing.		
 The current secure browser is required for testing. Consult the <u>Secure Browsers</u> webpage for more information. 		



Table 5. Tasks to Complete Prior to Test Administration

Action

Verify student demographic information and test settings.

- Each student must be correctly assigned to his or her district, school, and grade in TIDE. District personnel will not be able to add or delete students or make changes to student demographic information directly in TIDE. All changes to enrollment status (this includes students who move during testing) and student demographic information must be made in the Public School Information System (PSIS).
- Accurate reporting of individual student demographic status at the time of summative testing in the PSIS
 Registration Module is the only way to ensure accurate reporting for the annual summative statewide test
 results. Administrators responsible for statewide student testing will need to work with their District PSIS
 Coordinators to ensure that accurate student information is being reported in the PSIS Registration Module.
 The District PSIS Coordinator should make all changes to student enrollment and demographic information
 directly into the PSIS Registration Module.
- In addition to the correct school and grade, Test Coordinators and test examiners should verify that all students have accurate test settings in TIDE, including embedded and non-embedded designated supports and accommodations (per a student's implemented IEP/Section 504 Plan in CT-SEDS) for each content area prior to testing.
- Test Coordinators can add, delete, or change embedded and non-embedded designated supports in TIDE for students in the general education population, including Els/MLs. This only applies to students without an IEP/Section 504 Plan. (Refer to the <u>TIDE User Guide</u>.)
- Test Examiners may view student information; however, some roles cannot add, upload, or modify test settings in TIDE. Within the Test Administration Interface, a test examiner can change the default font size and turn off universal tools prior to the start of the test. Refer to the <u>CSDE Assessment Guidelines</u> for guidance regarding turning off universal tools.
- Adding or removing accommodations for students with an IEP/Section 504 Plan must be conducted by the PPT/Section 504 Team in CT-SEDS through an amendment process for students with a documented plan. Contact <u>Deirdre Ducharme</u> or <u>Katie Seifert</u> with questions.

Provide student with necessary login information (First Name, SASID, and Test Session ID).

• Students will log in to the test delivery system using their first name and SASID as they appear in TIDE. Students will also need the test Session ID to log in to a test. This information must be provided to each student to complete the login process. The SASID and the student's full first name may be printed and distributed to each student just prior to testing to help the student type it into the computer accurately. For information on printing student test tickets with students' login information, consult the *TIDE User Guide*. Student information is confidential; therefore, the cards/papers with this information must be kept secure until used during a test session and then collected and held secure at the end of each test session.

When a test examiner creates a test session, a unique Session ID is randomly generated. This Session ID must be provided to students before they log in. Please refer to Section <u>IV.I Test Session Administration</u> that details creating the Session ID.



Note: "SSID" is used as the designation in all CAI systems for "SASID," the State Assigned Student Identifier. Both SSID and SASID refer to the same 10-digit unique student identification number.



Alert: Important. Any additions/modifications/deletions to student test settings must be completed before the student can test. The update, once made, may take up to 48 hours to appear in the Test Administration Interface. Failure to correct test settings before testing could result in the student not being provided with the necessary accommodations and/or designated supports at the time of testing. This is considered a testing irregularity and may result in the need for a test reset appeal please contact your School Test Coordinator if you need to file this type of appeal.

For information on how to view, add, upload, and modify student information, please refer to the <u>TIDE User Guide</u> available on the <u>Connecticut Comprehensive Assessment Program Portal</u>.



Section IV. Day of Test Administration

It is important for anyone with access to student information to remember that student personal information, including the SASID, is confidential. If materials containing student personal information and/or SASIDs are distributed to students, these materials must be collected before the students leave the testing room and either securely stored to be used in a subsequent test session or destroyed.



Alert: The test examiner should verify the security of the testing environment prior to beginning a test session (see section <u>I.III Security of the Test Environment</u>). Test Examiners must ensure that students do not have access to digital, electronic, or manual devices during testing.

To ensure that all students are tested under the same conditions, the test examiner should adhere strictly to the script for administering the test. These instructions are provided in the boxes on the following pages. When asked, the test examiner should answer questions raised by students but should never help the class or individual students with specific test items. **No test items or passages can be read to any student for any content area, unless the student requires a designated support or accommodation as described in the** *Assessment Guidelines***.**

Distribute:

- scratch paper to students for all test sessions;
- graph paper to students in Grades 6, 7, and 8 for the mathematics assessments; and
- headphones to students for the ELA Listening portion of the English language arts assessments, to students who require Audio Glossaries on the mathematics assessments, and students who require text-to-speech on either assessment.

The directions in boxes indicated by the word "SAY" must be followed exactly and used each time a test is administered.

The test examiner should try to maintain a natural classroom atmosphere during the test administration. Before each test begins, the Text Examiner should encourage students to do their best. Please refer to <u>Appendix E</u> in the event your student becomes disruptive or refuses to respond while testing.



IV.I Test Session Administration

The test examiner must create a test session before students can log in to the Test Delivery System (but no more than 30 minutes prior or the system will time out unless the test session was scheduled in advance per Appendix G). When a test examiner creates a test session, a unique Session ID is randomly generated. This Session ID must be provided to the students before they log in and should be written down.

The test examiner should follow the steps outlined in this section to administer a test session:

1. Log in to the Test Administration Interface

a. From the Connecticut <u>Comprehensive Assessment</u>	ASSESSMENT
<u>Program Portal</u> , select the Smarter Balanced Assessments program card.	Smarter Balanced Assessments Access resources for administering Smarter Balanced Assessments in Mathematics and English language arts.
b. Select the Test Administration card.	SYSTEM ()
	0
	Test Administration
	Create and manage test
	sessions.



c. On the *Login* page, the test Login examiner enters their email address and password associated Email Address with their TIDE account in the respective fields. Then, the test Password examiner clicks Secure Login. The **Test Administration Interface** Forgot Your Password? appears. Secure Login First Time Login This School Year? The password you used during the previous school year has expired. Request a new one for this school year.

2. Create a Test Session Immediately

When a test examiner logs in to the Test Administration Interface, the *Test Selection* window opens automatically. To create a test session, select the particular test(s), grade(s), content area(s), and CAT(s) or PT(s) to be administered in the test session.

Note: To schedule a test session in advance see <u>Appendix F: How to Schedule a Test Session in</u> <u>Advance</u>.*

The **Test Selection** window color codes tests (**summative assessments are blue**). Assessments are also categorized by test, grade, content area, and type (CAT or PT). All tests appear collapsed by default. To expand a category, click (+). To collapse an expanded a category, click (-).

Note: Students will only be able to see and access those tests for which they are eligible in TIDE.

3. Start the Test Session

After selecting the assessment(s) to be administered during the test session, the test examiner clicks the [**Start Session**] button to begin the test session and generate the Session ID that students use to join that test session.

The example below displays all Grade 3 summative tests and shows that the test examiner has selected the Grade 3 ELA CAT to include in the test session.



Test Selection			۹ x
Filter By: # Add Filter		1 Tests Selected	Clear All
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments Choose the tests to add to your session, and then start your session.	53	Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments Grade 3 ELA - Summative CAT	
- Grade 3			
 ELA Computer Adaptive Testing (CAT) 			
Grade 3 ELA - Summative CAT			
+ I Math Computer Adaptive Testing (CAT)			
+ Math Performance Task (PT)			
+ Grade 4			
+ Grade 5			
+ Grade 6			
+ 🖸 Grade 7			
+ Grade 8			
+ Smarter Balanced Braille HAT			
Back		Start Session	

4. Inform the Students of the Test Session ID

The system-generated Session ID appears in the top-left corner of the screen.

The test examiner should write the test Session ID in a place where students can see it. Make sure students know that the case-sensitive test Session ID must be entered **exactly** as it is written without extra spaces or characters. **The test examiner should write down the Session ID for their own records, in case they are involuntarily logged out of the system.** For example, if no computer in the session is active (by any student or test examiner) for 30 minutes, the students and the test examiner will be logged out. Having the Session ID will allow the test examiner to resume the session. If the test examiner resumes the test session, a student who has paused for more than 20 minutes on the CAT test will not be able to see previously responded items. If the pause was less than 20 minutes, the student can review previous items. The pause rule is the same regardless of if the test examiner starts a new session or resumes the old.

CONNECTICUT STATE DEPARTME CONFREMENSIVE ASSESSMENT PR	ENT OF EDUCATION	Test Admin	stration	🕜 Help Guid	de DemoUse	er, State5 🗸
Session ID UAT-3917-14	Select Tests	Q Student Lookup	Approvals	Stop Session	Refresh Page	Menu
Test Session						•

Give students the test Session ID and other login information.

The SASID and the student's full first name may be provided to students ahead of time on a card to help them type it in the computer accurately. Test Examiners may print students' first names and SASIDs by using the *Print Testing Tickets* feature in the *Administering Tests* section of TIDE. Student information is confidential; therefore, the test tickets with this information must be collected after each test session and securely destroyed after testing is complete.



SAY: Today, you will take the Smarter Balanced [insert grade, ELA/mathematics, and CAT/PT] Summative Assessment. I will give you a test Session ID that is required to start the test. If you need an individual break during the test, raise your hand and wait for my instructions and permission.

Once you have logged in, wait for me to approve the test before you start. I'll be checking that you have correctly entered the test Session ID and other information.

CONNECTICUT STAT COMPREHENSIVE ASS	E DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION ESSMENT PROGRAM	
	Please Sign In	
	First Name:	
This is the Operational Test Site	Student ID: EX: 123456789	
If you want to go to the Practice Test Site click the button below	Session ID:	
Go to the Practice Test Site	Browser: Secure v5	
Operational Test Site	Sign In	

SAY: Enter your first name followed by your Student ID number using the information on the paper I gave you. Then enter the test Session ID exactly as it is written—it is case sensitive—without extra spaces or characters. Raise your hand if you need help typing this information.

Please do not share your Student ID number with anyone. This is private information.

SAY: Now click "Sign In." Once you have successfully signed in, you will see a screen with your first name, Student ID number, school, and grade. If all of the information on your screen is correct, select YES to continue. If any of the information is incorrect, please raise your hand and show me what is incorrect.

Note: Contact your School Test Coordinator or District Administrator if a student has incorrect information.



Ensure that all students have successfully entered their information.

The test examiner should ensure that students use their first names as they appear in TIDE, not nicknames. If a student is unable to log in, they will be prompted to try again, and will receive a message describing the reason (an invalid SASID, for example). If the student is still having difficulty, the test examiner can look up the correct information using the Student Lookup function on the Test Administration Interface or TIDE. The test examiner may assist students with logging in if necessary.

5. Inform Students of the Test Session in Which They are Participating

SAY: On the next screen, select the [INSERT NAME OF TEST (e.g., Summative CAT ELA Grade 3)]. If your screen does not say "summative", please raise your hand. After you have selected the test, you will see a screen with a moving bar and message saying that you are waiting for Test Administrator approval. This step helps ensure that you are taking the correct test. Please wait quietly while I verify each of your tests.

If the test examiner is unsure of which content area or test students are participating in during that session, the test examiner should contact the School Test Coordinator.



Students may be able to select from more than one test—for example, a CAT in both ELA and mathematics. The test examiner should direct students to select the appropriate test name based on what the test examiner is planning to administer at that time. Students will see only assessments for which they are eligible.

6. View and Approve Students Waiting for Test Session Approval

After students have selected a test, the test examiner verifies that each student selected the appropriate test on the Test Administration Interface before approving that student for testing. It is very important that the test examiner pays close attention to the test name prior to approving to be sure it is the correct summative test to be administered at that time. On the Test Administration Interface, the test examiner will complete the following steps:



a. Select the [Approvals (#)] button.



Note: The **Approvals** notification updates regularly, but you can also click \sub in the upper-right corner to update it manually.

- b. A new window opens that shows a list of students. The test examiner should review the list to ensure that students are taking the correct content area (mathematics or ELA) and type of test (CAT or PT). All tests should say "Summative" in the title.
 - If a student selected a test other than the one the test examiner plans to administer to that student that day (for example, a student selected a PT instead of a CAT or selected mathematics instead of ELA), the test examiner must deny the test session. You can deny a student by selecting [X]. The student may then log in again and select the correct test.
- c. The test examiner should also review the test settings assigned to each student to ensure that the settings are correct. To check a student's test settings and

accommodations, click	۲	for that student.	The student's	information will	appear.
-----------------------	---	-------------------	---------------	------------------	---------

Approvals and Student Test Settings						
2 students awaiting approval 0 active students (max 200) 0 tests in session			nced Summative Assessments			
t(s)						
\Leftrightarrow SSID	⇔ Opp #	\Leftrightarrow See Details	\Leftrightarrow Action			
999121017000	1	Standard	××			
nt(s)						
\Leftrightarrow SSID	⊖ Opp #	\Leftrightarrow See Details				
999121017004	1	Standard	✓ ×			
	00) 0 tests in session t(s)	00) 0 tests in session t(s)	00) 0 tests in session ● = Smarter Balar t(s)			



- If a student's settings are incorrect, do not approve that student to begin testing. The test examiner will need to work directly with a School or District Coordinator to correct the test settings in TIDE before approving the student to begin testing. (*Reminder: It may take up to 48 hours for changes to appear in the Test Administration Interface.*) If accommodations are incorrectly reported for a student with an implemented IEP or Section 504 Plan, contact the Case Manager. The Case manager will need to ensure that the appropriate accommodations are documented in the plan through the PPT/Section 504 process. Please note, once the corrections are made and the plan is implemented, teams will need to allow at least two days for the updates to import from CT-SEDS to TIDE. Ensuring the test settings are correct before the student begins testing for the student later. Please see the *TIDE User Guide* for additional information on correcting student test settings.
- d. When the correct test is selected and test settings are verified, the test examiner clicks

 $[\checkmark]$ next to the student's name or clicks [Approve All Students].

SAY: After I approve you to begin testing, you will see a screen asking you to check your test content area and settings. Review your name, Student ID number, test name, and test settings. If all the information is correct, you may select YES, START MY TEST. If any of it is incorrect, please raise your hand.

Each student will be logging in to the student interface at a different time. The test examiner should monitor the sessions and log in all students who are currently ready before assisting any students who are having problems.

The *Sound and Video Playback Checks* page only appears for tests with video and sound content. The *Sound and Video Playback Check* page appears in all of the following circumstances:

- if a student will be taking an ELA CAT;
- if a student requires a support that utilizes audio/video (e.g., text-to-speech, speech-to-text, American Sign Language, or Audio Glossaries on the mathematics assessments).

If any of the above are true, read the next box so the students will know how to verify that their headsets are working properly.

SAY: Next you should see a screen that prompts you to verify that the sound and video on your computer is working. Put your headsets on and click the play icon to play the video and sound. If you are able to play the video and hear the sound, click [I could play the video]. If not, raise your hand.







If a student's volume is not working, troubleshoot basic steps such as ensuring that the headset is fully plugged in, mute is not inadvertently selected, and the volume setting is turned up. If the student is still experiencing issues, contact your School Technology Coordinator or the Connecticut Comprehensive Assessment Program Help Desk at 1-844-202-7583 or cthelpdesk@cambiumassessment.com.

Note: If the student clicks [I could not play the video] during the Video Playback Check, an on-screen instruction will appear prompting the student to raise their hand and ask for assistance.

Please note that the test examiner should take care to emphasize the script regarding the actions that each student should take before pausing their test, whether the test needs to be paused due to a need for an individual student break, or if all student tests included in a test session need to be paused due to a scheduled break. The script that a test examiner should read to students regarding the Instructions and Help Page may differ slightly based on the test included in the test session due to different pause rules for the CAT and the PT (see Appendix B Pause Rules).

Note: For the CAT portion of the test, after a pause, the student's test can be resumed at any time within the testing window up to 45 days from the start date. For the mathematics performance task, there is no pause limit, but the test expires 20 days after it is started within the testing window.





You must make an answer selection in order to move to the question on the next page. If you are unsure of an answer, provide what you think is the best answer; there is no penalty for guessing. If you would like to review that answer at a later time, mark the item for review by clicking on the icon () in the upper-right corner of the question and clicking the flag to mark for review before going on to the next question. Flagging the item will remind you to go back and decide whether you want to change the answer during this test.

Note for Math 6-8 ONLY:

SAY: The embedded Desmos calculator is an available tool for certain math items. The calculator icon () is located in the upper-right corner of your screen.

You may PAUSE at any point in the test by clicking PAUSE rather than NEXT after answering an item. [The following statement only applies to the CAT.] The PAUSE button is used to pause the test. Note that PAUSING for more than 20 minutes will prevent you from changing any answer on previous pages of the test. Please respond to <u>all</u> items on your current test page before pausing the test. Please raise your hand if you need a break and ask me before you click PAUSE.

Your answers need to be your own work. Please keep your eyes on your own test and remember that there should be no talking.

When you get to the end of this test, you will be prompted to review your answers before submitting the test. Once you submit your answers, you will not be able to return to the test.

When you are ready to begin your test, click BEGIN TEST NOW at the bottom of the page.

7. Monitor Student Progress

Monitor Test Selection

It is important that the test examiner monitor student progress throughout the test session. This includes verifying that students are participating in the **summative test**, appropriate content area (ELA or mathematics), and type of test (CAT or PT). The test examiner monitors the test each student is taking by referring to the Students in your Test Session table in the Test Administration Interface.

In the event a student is taking an incorrect test, the test examiner should pause the student's test and instruct the student to log out and log in again to select the correct test.



0 students awaiting approval 0 print requests 2 active students (max 200) • = Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments					
Students in your Test See	Students in your Test Session				
Student Information	🕀 Test	⊜ Opp #		⊜ Test Settings	
Demo, Demo 999121017004	Summative CAT - ELA Grade 3	1	2 / 15 answered - Started	Standard	\$ II
Demo2, Demo2 999121017000	Summative CAT - Math Grade 3	1	0 / 0 answered - Approved	Standard	\$ II

In the event that a student starts a test unintentionally (for example, selected an interim assessment instead of a summative assessment, PT instead of a CAT, or mathematics instead of ELA), the test's expiration timeline will be activated. If a student is unable to return to and complete the test before it expires in 45 days (CAT) or 20 days (PT), the Test Coordinator will need to submit an appeal via TIDE to reopen the test.

Monitor Test Progress

Once students have started their tests, the test examiner should circulate through the room to ensure that all conditions of test security are maintained. If the test examiner witnesses or suspects the possibility of a test security incident, the District Administrator should be contacted immediately in accordance with the security guidance provided in this manual.

The test examiner may also use the Test Administration Interface to view the testing progress of any student. This site will not show test items or scores but will let the test examiner see how many items have been delivered to each student (e.g., question 24/40).

While the Test Administration Interface is designed to automatically refresh every 20 seconds, the test examiner can refresh it manually at any time by clicking the $[\mathcal{C}]$ button at the top right of the screen.



Alert: Do NOT click the web browser's refresh button to refresh the Test Administration Interface. Doing so may log the test examiner out of the current session. If this happens, have students pause the test and create a new test session. Students should log back into the test with the new Session ID.



Alert: If the Test Administration Interface is accidentally closed while students are still testing, the session will remain open until it times out after 30 minutes. Before 30 minutes have elapsed, the test examiner can open the browser and navigate back to the Test Administration Interface. The test examiner will be prompted to enter the active Session ID and re-enter the test session.

As a security measure, test examiners are automatically logged out of the Test Administration Interface after 30 minutes of test examiner inactivity and student inactivity in the test session, which will result in closing the test session. If this occurs, the test examiner will have to create a new session, and the students will have to log in to the new session to resume testing. When starting a new session, the test examiner should give the students the new Session ID so that they can log in and resume testing.



Alert: If the test examiner is using the Test Administration Interface and navigates to another CAI system (TIDE, CRS, etc.), the session will stop and all students in the session will be logged out. The test examiner should keep the browser with the Test Administration Interface open at all times throughout the session.

Address Problems That May Come Up During the Test Session

Table 6 shows appropriate responses to specific problems that may come up during testing.

Problem	Response
The test examiner notices that a student is off task.	Encourage the student to do their best. In some cases, the best solution would be to have the student pause the test (for less than 20 minutes) and allow the student to take a break.
A student requests assistance with answering a test item or manipulating an item type.	Teachers may assist students in navigating the online test environment and responding to different item types (e.g., using the available global tools, such as the Mark for Review feature and the Next button), but they should not assist students with any content needed to answer questions.
The Test Administration Interface is accidentally closed while students are still testing.	Before 30 minutes have elapsed, the browser can be opened and the test examiner can navigate back to the Test Administration Interface. Re-enter the test session by entering the active Session ID.
The test examiner is automatically logged out of the Test Administration Interface after 30 minutes of inactivity by both the test examiner and the students. This will result in closing the test session entirely.	The test examiner can create a new test session with a new Session ID. The students will need to use this to log back into the system and resume testing. Students who paused the test or were inactive for more than 20 minutes cannot go back to previously responded items.

Table 6. Test Examiner Responses During the Test Session

Students should have an opportunity to practice on the Training Test and Practice Test prior to testing to ensure that they are able to manipulate each item type and use the various tools and supports during testing.

8. End the Test Session and Log Out of the Test Administration Interface

When there are approximately 10 minutes left in the test session, read the following to the students.

SAY: This test session is almost over. Please review any completed or marked items now, as you will not be able to see those items again. Do not click SUBMIT TEST unless you are completely finished with your test. Once you submit your test, you will not be able to go back and review any questions. Please check all your work before submitting.



After answering the last item in each segment, each student is presented with a screen prompting the student to review answers (marked and unmarked) for all items available to the student or prior to submitting the test.

After answering the last question, students must submit their tests. If students would like to review their answers before submitting their test, they should click the number of the question they wish to review and, only after they finish reviewing, should they click [**SUBMIT TEST**].



Once a student clicks [SUBMIT TEST], the student will not be able to review answers.

SAY: This test session is now over. If you have not finished, click PAUSE, and you will be able to finish at another time. If you have finished, click SUBMIT TEST. I will now collect any scratch paper or other materials.

Click [**STOP**] in the Test Administration Interface to end the test session and pause any student test in the session that is still in progress. Log out of the Test Administration Interface by clicking the [**Logout**] button at the top right. Collect any scratch paper and/or graph paper.

IV.II Testing Over Multiple Sessions or Days

If the test examiner intends to administer the test over the course of multiple days for a student or group of students, the test examiner may ask students to pause after they reach a designated point. (Students will receive a notification when they reach the end of the section. However, for most tests, there is nothing built into the system to prevent students from progressing from one section of the test to another.) In those cases, the test examiner should give the students clear directions on when to pause. For example, the test examiner may designate a certain amount of time for testing. This guidance may be written in a place that students can easily see it.

When testing is resumed on a subsequent day, the test examiner will need to start a new test session and provide a new Session ID. When instructing the students to log in, the test examiner should read the script (SAY boxes) to the students from the beginning of section <u>IV.I</u> <u>Test Session Administration</u>.

A summary of recommendations for the number of sessions and session durations is available in the <u>Test Coordinator's Manual (TCM)</u>.



This page has been intentionally left blank.



Section V. Following Test Administration

V.I Destroying Test Materials

Alert: Federal law—the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)—prohibits the release of any student's personally identifiable information. Any printed materials must be securely stored and then destroyed.

As a reminder, those printed and paper test materials identified in section <u>I.II Ensuring Test</u> <u>Security</u> must be securely destroyed immediately following each test session and may not be retained from one test session to the next. The only exception to this is scratch paper and/or graph paper used during the mathematics performance task, which should be handled according to the guidance provided in section <u>I.IV Secure Handling of Printed</u> <u>Materials</u>.

V.II Reporting Testing Improprieties, Irregularities, and Breaches

Throughout testing, ensure that all test security incidents are reported in accordance with state and district policies (See <u>I.II Ensuring Test Security</u>).

Any breaches in test security must be reported immediately to the District Administrator who will contact the Connecticut State Department of Education Performance Office.

See <u>Appendix B: Testing Improprieties</u>, <u>Irregularities</u>, <u>and Breaches</u> and <u>Appendix C: Test</u> <u>Security</u> for more information.



This page has been intentionally left blank.



Appendix A. Computer Adaptive Test Pause Rule Scenarios

Pause rules are invoked in certain circumstances during the administration of a Computer Adaptive Test (CAT). The scenarios in which the pause rules are invoked are indicated below.

Scenarios

- If the CAT portion of the test is paused for less than 20 minutes, the student can return to previous test pages and change the response to any item the student has already answered within a segment.
- If the CAT portion of the test is paused for more than 20 minutes, the student is required to log back into the Student Interface. The test will return the student to the last page with unanswered items when the student logs back into the test to resume testing. If a page has both answered and unanswered items, the student may change any answers on that page. The student may not return to previous pages and cannot change answers to items on previous pages. Examples of the pause rule on the CAT are as follows:
 - Example A: A single test page on the CAT contains items 4–10. A student answers items 4–7 on this page and pauses the test for more than 20 minutes. When the student logs back into the Student Interface and resumes testing, the student can review or change their answers to items 4–10 but <u>cannot</u> return to items 1–3 on a previous page in the CAT.
 - Example B: A single test page on the CAT contains items 9–11. The student answers items 9–11 before pausing the test for more than 20 minutes. When the student logs back into the Student Interface and resumes testing, the student will begin on item 12 but <u>cannot</u> return to items 1–11.
 - Example C: A single test page on the CAT contains item 9. The student has already answered items 1–8. The student was <u>only</u> reading item 9 before pausing the test for more than 20 minutes <u>and did not click on/near the response options or text</u> <u>field provided to collect a response</u>. When the student logs back into the Student Interface and resumes testing, the student will begin on item 9 since item 9 was not responded to but cannot return to items 1–8.



This page has been intentionally left blank.



Appendix B. Testing Improprieties, Irregularities, and Breaches

Test security incidents, such as improprieties, irregularities, and breaches, are behaviors prohibited either because they give a student an unfair advantage or because they compromise the security of the assessments. Whether intentional or by accident, failure to comply with security rules, either by staff or students, constitutes a test security incident. Improprieties, irregularities, and breaches need to be reported in accordance with the instructions in this section for each severity level. Definitions for test security incidents are provided in Table 7.

There are times when these situations may even require a retest of an individual or a group of students. Any breaches in test security must be reported immediately to the District Administrator who will contact the Connecticut State Department of Education Performance Office.

Туре	Definition
Breach	A test security incident that poses a threat to the validity of the test. Examples may include such situations as a release of secure materials or a security/system risk. These circumstances have external implications for the Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium and may result in a Consortium decision to remove the test item(s) from the available secure bank. A breach incident must be reported to the District Administrator immediately and entered in TIDE (should an appeal be required). Breaches require immediate attention and escalation to the state . Any breaches in test security must be reported immediately to your District Administrator who will contact the Connecticut State Department of Education Performance Office .
Irregularity	A test security incident that impacts an individual or group of students who are testing and may potentially affect student performance on the test, test security, or test validity. These circumstances can be corrected by the district/school and submitted in the online appeals system for resolution, if necessary. An irregularity must be reported to the District Administrator immediately and entered into the appeals module of TIDE (should an appeal be required).
Impropriety	A test security incident that has a low impact on the individual or group of students who are testing and has a low risk of potentially affecting student performance on the test, test security, or test validity. These circumstances can be corrected and contained at the local level. An impropriety should be reported to the Test Coordinator immediately and entered into the appeals module of TIDE (should an appeal be required).

Table 7. Definitions for Test Security Incidents

It is important for test examiners to ensure the physical conditions in the testing room meet the criteria for a secure test environment. See section <u>I.III Security of the Test Environment</u> for more details.



This page has been intentionally left blank.



Appendix C. Test Security Violations

The **Test Security Chart** shows the test security incident levels and examples of types of issues.

Level of Severity & Potential Effect on Test Security	Types of Issues
LOW	Student(s) making distracting gestures/sounds or talking during the test session that creates a disruption in the test session for other students. Student(s) leave the test room without authorization.
Impropriety	Disruptions to a test session such as a fire drill, school-wide power outage, earthquake, or other acts.
	Student(s) cheating or providing answers to each other, including passing notes, giving help to other students during testing, or using hand-held electronic devices to exchange information. Student(s) accessing the Internet or any unauthorized software or applications during testing. Student(s) accessing or using unauthorized electronic equipment (e.g., cell phones, smart watches, iPods, or electronic translators) during testing. In addition, student(s) accessing calculators during a non-calculator segment.
	Administrator or Coordinator leaving related instructional materials on the walls in the testing room.
	Administrator or Coordinator failing to ensure administration and supervision of the Smarter Balanced Assessments by qualified, trained personnel.
	Administrator giving incorrect instructions that are not corrected prior to testing.
	Administrator or Coordinator giving out his or her username/password (via email or otherwise), including to other authorized users.
MEDIUM	Administrator allowing students to continue testing beyond the close of the testing window.
Irregularity	Administrator or teacher coaching or providing any other type of assistance to students that may affect their responses. This includes both verbal cues (e.g., interpreting, explaining, or paraphrasing the test items or prompts) and nonverbal cues (e.g., voice inflection, pointing, or nodding head) to the correct answer. This also includes leading students through instructional strategies such as thinkaloud, asking students to point to the correct answer or otherwise identify the source of their answer, or requiring students to show their work.
	Administrator providing students with non-allowable materials or devices during test administration or allowing inappropriate designated supports and/or accommodations during test administration.
	Administrator allowing anyone other than a student to log in to the test unless prescribed as an allowable accommodation in the student's IEP. This includes TAs or other staff using student information to log in or allowing a student to log in using another student's information.
	Administrator providing a student access to another student's work/responses.
	Administrator or Coordinator modifying student responses or records at any time.
	The live Student Interface or TA Interface being used for practice instead of the Interim, Training, or Practice Tests.
	Adult or student posting items or test materials on social media (Twitter, Facebook, Instagram etc.).
	Administrator allowing students to take home printed test items, reading passages, writing prompts, or scratch paper that was used during the test or failing to otherwise securely store test materials.
HIGH	Adult or student copying, discussing, or otherwise retaining test items, reading passages, writing
Breach	prompts, or answers for any reason. This includes the use of photocopiers or digital, electronic, or
	manual devices to record or communicate a test item. This also includes using secure test items,
	nouned secure test items, reduing passages, writing prompts, or answer keys for instructional purposes.
	Secure test materials being shared with the media (such as the writing prompts, test items, or
	reading passages), or allowing media to observe a secure test administration.
	Adult or student improperly removing secure testing materials such as test items, stimuli, reading passages, writing prompts, or scratch paper from the testing environment.



This page has been intentionally left blank.



Appendix D. Test Examiner Checklist

	Test Examiner Activities
1.	Review the Test Administration Manual.
2.	Attend school or district training sessions.
3.	Use the Training Test and/or Practice Test with students to familiarize them with navigation of the system and tools.
4.	Perform an equipment-needs check based on individual student requirements.
	 Work with the School Test Coordinator to identify students who will need specialized equipment for accommodations. Refer to the <u>Configuring Assistive Technologies</u> webpage for more information.
	Note: Students are permitted and encouraged to use their own ear buds or headsets—but districts and schools should also plan on having some available.
5.	Work with the School Test Coordinator to determine precise testing schedules based on the test administration windows selected by the school schedule.
	$\circ~$ Make sure your students' test administration schedule includes allowable breaks.
6.	Confirm that you have received your TIDE login information. You will also use this username and password for any other CAI-provided systems.
	Note: If you have not received this information, please check your spam/junk email folder to see if it was mistakenly routed there. If not, check with your School Test Coordinator.
7.	Work with your School Test Coordinator to ensure that each student appears in TIDE.
8.	Verify that student test settings have been uploaded into TIDE.
9.	Confirm each student's test settings for designated supports and accommodations in TIDE against their finalized IEP/Section 504 plan in CT-SEDS or other relevant documentation as appropriate.
10.	Ensure that the correct secure browser has been downloaded to any computer(s) on which students will be testing.
11.	Communicate to students the need for headsets in order to take the ELA Listening portions of the CAT.
	a. Identify any students who may not have their own headsets and make arrangements with the school to have headsets available for those students. Counts should be determined prior to testing.
	b. Also have extra headsets on hand for students who may forget to bring their headsets.
	c. Send reminders several days prior to testing to ensure students remember to bring headsets.
12.	Plan a quiet activity for each test session for students who finish early.
	Note: The activity should not be related to the test being given. For example, students who finish early may work on assignments for unrelated subjects or read a book.
13.	Prior to administration, check all computers that will be used and close all applications except those identified as necessary by the school's Technology Coordinator. Make sure that no computer has dual monitors.



Test Examiner Activities
a. Work with your Technology Coordinator to set system volume prior to students launching the secure browser to ensure students can hear the audio portions of the ELA segment.
b. The test examiner should open the secure browser on each computer after closing any unnecessary applications.
14. Administer the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments, following the directions for administration. Provide any approved non-embedded designated supports and accommodations as noted in the student's test settings.
15. Provide students with scratch paper for all test sessions. Also provide students in Grades 6 and higher with graph paper for the mathematics assessments.
16. Ensure that students who need other non-embedded universal tools or non-embedded accommodations are provided those supports.
17. On the day of testing, verify that the students have their login information (first name, SASID, and Session ID).
18. Review all guidelines for creating a secure test environment.
19. Make sure the physical conditions of the testing room are satisfactory.
 Make sure that no instructional materials directly related to the content of the assessments are visible.
 Students should be seated so they have no opportunity to look at another student's computer screen. Either adequately space students or provide partitions to separate them.
$\circ~$ Actively monitor students throughout the test sessions.
 Make sure students clear their desks and put away all books, backpacks, purses, cell phones, electronic devices of any kind, and other materials not needed for the test.
 Ensure that students do not access unauthorized electronic devices (such as cell phones, smart phones, or smart watches) at any time during testing.
20. Report any testing improprieties, irregularities, and breaches to the School Test Coordinator and District Administrator.
21. Securely destroy all printed testing materials not needed for scoring, including student login information, print-on-demand documents, scratch paper, and graph paper.



Appendix E. What If My Student Becomes Disruptive or Refuses to Respond?

If the student becomes disruptive, aggressive, or refuses testing:

- Mirror strategies used during instruction.
- Pause testing for that student; resume at another time when student is more receptive to testing.
- Consider testing in a different environment or provide additional staff supports.
- If personal safety is ever a concern for you or your student, pause testing for that student immediately.
- If the student is unable to complete testing, pause the test.
- Notify your District Administrator in TIDE and/or supervisors within the district who monitor student testing completion rates of this occurrence.



This page has been intentionally left blank.





Appendix F. Scheduling a Test Session in Advance

How to Schedule a Test Session in Advance

To help ensure the day of testing runs as smoothly as possible, test examiners can schedule test sessions in advance. When a test examiner schedules a test session in advance, the online testing system provides a session ID. Test Examiners provide this information to their students so students can join the session when it begins. Students enter the session ID when they are signing in to take the test through the Secure Browser.

Test Examiners can schedule a test session in advance by following the steps below:

- 1. Access the test administration site by following steps in the section Log in to the Test Administration Interface.
- 2. The *Test Administration* page appears. Select **Upcoming Sessions**.



3. The Upcoming Sessions page appears. Select Schedule a Session.





4. The *Schedule a Session* pop-up window appears. In the *Start* and *End* fields, enter a start and end date for the session and select **Next**.

Test Selection	ৎ (
Create an Assignment Choose the dates for which the assignment can be accessed	
Start: xx/xx/xxxx	~
End: XX/XX/XXXX	set the start and end dates for the session
	Save Session xx/xx/xxxx

5. The *Test Selection* page appears. From the list of color-coded test categories, select the test category from which you wish to include tests.

Test Selection	۹ 😣		
Choose a testing category Then select one or more tests. You can switch categories by using the button in the modal header. → Smarter Balanced Interim Assessments → Next Generation Science Standards Interim Assessments	You must make at least one selection before starting your session.		
	Save Session		

The tests or test groups for the selected test category appear. Select a test or group of tests to add to the session by marking the checkbox(es) by the test(s). Expand a group of tests by selecting the Plus Sign icon (+) next to that group.

Test Selection	۹ و
ilter By: 🗱 Add Filter hoose the tests to add to your session, and then start your session.	
= Grade 3	
- English Language Arts/Literacy	
+ Interim Comprehensive Assessments (ICA)	You must make at least one selection before starting your session
+ 🔲 Interim Assessment Blocks (IAB)	
- 🔲 Mathematics	
+ Interim Comprehensive Assessments (ICA)	
+ Interim Assessment Blocks (IAB)	
+ 🔲 Grade 4	
+ 🗋 Grade 5	· ·
Back	Save Session



- 7. Once you have selected a test or tests to add to the session, the *Session Settings* fields appear. Do the following:
 - a. In the Session Name field, enter a name for the session.
 - b. From the Select Test Reason drop-down menu, select a test reason for the session.
 - c. Select Save Session.

Test Selection		५ 😣
Filter By: 葉 Add Filter		15 Tests Selected
Smarter Balanced Interim Assessments	53 ⁽	Smarter Balanced Interim Assessments
Choose the tests to add to your session, and then start your session.		Grade 5 ELA - Brief Writes (IAB) Grade 5 ELA - Editing (FIAB)
+ Grade 3		Grade 5 ELA - Language and Vocabulary Use (FIAB)
- a Grade 5		Grade 5 ELA - Listen/Interpret (FIAB) Grade 5 ELA - Performance Task - Recycling (IAB)
- English Language Arts/Literacy		Grade 5 ELA - Read Informational Texts (IAB)
+ 🔲 Interim Comprehensive Assessments (ICA)		Session Settings
 Interim Assessment Blocks (IAB) 		Session Name:
Grade 5 ELA - Brief Writes (IAB)		Select Test Reason
Back		Save Session

- 8. The *Session Information* pop-up window appears. This pop-up window provides the session ID. Test Examiners should copy this session ID for themselves and save it in a secure location in case they need it later.
- 9. The *Test Administration* site appears again, displaying the *Upcoming Sessions* page. The scheduled session appears in the table.

These are you	ur upcoming testing	sessions.			
the table below sho	ws all your upcoming session	IS.			
Upcoming Sessi	ons				
Session ID	e Session Info	😣 Туре	⇔ Share	e Action	Schedule a Session
CT-5367-41T 7	est xx/xx - xx/xx/xx	In Person session	Share Link	Î	

- To edit an upcoming session before it begins, select the **pencil** icon (
- To delete an upcoming session before it begins, select the **trash can** icon ($\overline{\Box}$).



How to Modify a Test Session that was Scheduled in Advance but has Not Started Yet

Test Examiners can modify test sessions and sessions that were scheduled in advance but have not started yet.

For example, a test examiner may want to modify a session after it was created to add tests or change the start or end date of the session.

Test Examiners can modify test sessions that were scheduled in advance but have not started yet by following the steps below:

- 1. Access the test administration site by following steps in the section Log in to the Test Administration Interface.
- 2. The *Test Administration* site appears. Do one of the following:
 - To modify a test session, select **Upcoming Sessions**. The *Upcoming Sessions* page appears.

CONNECTICUT STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Test Administration Image: Contract of Education Image: Contractive Sessions Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image: Contract of Education Image						
These are The table below	your upcoming testing se shows all your upcoming sessions.	essions.				
Upcoming Sessions Image: Constraint of the session lnfo ⊕ Type ⊕ Share ⊕ Action Schedule a Session						
CT-5367-41T	Test xx/xx/xx - xx/xx/xx	In Person session	Share Link	î		

- 3. To edit an upcoming test session, select the pencil icon () for that test session and do one of the following:
 - To modify a test session, complete Steps 4-8 in the section <u>How to Schedule a Test</u> <u>Session in Advance</u>.



This page has been intentionally left blank.